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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
BEFORE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION

                                        
)

In The Matter of )
)

PROGRESSIVE MORTGAGE CORPORATION, )
a corporation, and )

) DOCKET NO. C-3724
SANFORD CRAMER, )

individually and as an officer )
of said corporation. )

)
                                        )

COMPLAINT

The Federal Trade Commission, having reason to believe that
Progressive Mortgage Corporation, a corporation, has violated the
provisions of the Federal Trade Commission Act ("FTC Act"), 15
U.S.C §§ 45-58, as amended, and the Truth in Lending Act
("TILA"), 15 U.S.C. §§ 1601-1667, as amended, and its
implementing Regulation Z, 12 C.F.R. Part 226, and that Sanford
Cramer, individually and as an officer of Progressive Mortgage
Corporation, has violated the FTC Act, and it appearing to the
Commission that a proceeding by it in respect thereof would be in
the public interest, issues this complaint and alleges as
follows:

PARAGRAPH ONE:  Respondent Progressive Mortgage Corporation
is a corporation organized, existing, and doing business under
and by virtue of the laws of the State of Ohio, with its
principal place of business at 5400 Transportation Boulevard,
Cleveland, Ohio 44125.

Respondent Sanford Cramer is the President of Progressive
Mortgage Corporation.  He formulates, directs and controls the
acts and practices of the corporate respondent, including the
acts and practices alleged in this complaint.  His principal
place of business is the same as that of the corporate
respondent.

PARAGRAPH TWO:  Respondent Progressive Mortgage Corporation
has been and is now engaged in the business of offering "consumer
credit" to the public and is a "creditor," as those terms are
defined in the TILA and Regulation Z.
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PARAGRAPH THREE:  The acts and practices of respondents
alleged in this complaint have been and are in or affecting
commerce, as "commerce" is defined in the FTC Act. 15 U.S.C.
§ 44.

PARAGRAPH FOUR:  Respondent Progressive Mortgage
Corporation, in the course and conduct of its business, on
certain occasions, has failed to include the premiums for
mortgage insurance, for so long as such insurance is required, in
determining the finance charge and annual percentage rate for
consumer credit transactions, and, thus, has understated the
annual percentage rate and finance charge in its TILA
disclosures.

PARAGRAPH FIVE:  The aforesaid practice of respondent
Progressive Mortgage Corporation violates Sections 106, 107 and
128 of the TILA, 15 U.S.C. §§ 1605, 1606 and 1638, respectively,
and Sections 226.4(b)(5); 226.22; and 226.18(d) and (e) of
Regulation Z, 12 C.F.R. §§ 226.4(b)(5); 226.22; and 226.18(d) and
(e), respectively, and constitutes an unfair and deceptive act or
practice in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C.
§ 45(a).

PARAGRAPH SIX:  Respondent Progressive Mortgage Corporation,
in the course and conduct of its business, on certain occasions,
has failed to disclose accurately the number, amount, and timing
of payments scheduled to repay the obligation in its TILA
disclosures.

PARAGRAPH SEVEN:  The aforesaid practice of respondent
Progressive Mortgage Corporation violates Section 128 of the
TILA, 15 U.S.C. § 1638, and Section 226.18(g) of Regulation Z, 12
C.F.R. § 226.18(g), and constitutes an unfair and deceptive act
or practice in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15
U.S.C. § 45(a).

PARAGRAPH EIGHT:  Respondent Progressive Mortgage
Corporation, in the course and conduct of its business, on
certain occasions, has failed to disclose accurately the total of
payments scheduled to repay the obligation in its TILA
disclosures.

PARAGRAPH NINE:  The aforesaid practice of respondent
Progressive Mortgage Corporation violates Section 128 of the
TILA, 15 U.S.C. § 1638, and Section 226.18(h) of Regulation Z,
12 C.F.R. § 226.18(h), and constitutes an unfair and deceptive
act or practice in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act,
15 U.S.C. § 45(a).

PARAGRAPH TEN: Respondent Sanford Cramer, in the course and
conduct of his business, has provided written disclosures to
customers and potential customers of Progressive Mortgage
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Corporation relating to the TILA that state, for mortgage loans,
the annual percentage rate, the finance charge, the monthly
payment amount, and the total of payments scheduled to repay the
obligation.

PARAGRAPH ELEVEN: Through the use of these written
disclosures, respondent Sanford Cramer has represented, directly
or by implication, that the figures and amounts stated therein
truthfully represent the annual percentage rate, the finance
charge, the monthly payment amount, and the total of payments
scheduled to repay the obligation.

PARAGRAPH TWELVE: In truth and fact, on certain occasions,
the figures and amounts contained in these written disclosures
were less than the actual annual percentage rate, finance charge,
monthly payment amount, and total of payments scheduled to repay
the obligation.  Therefore, the representations set forth in
PARAGRAPH ELEVEN were, and are, false and misleading.

PARAGRAPH THIRTEEN: The aforesaid acts and practices of
respondent Sanford Cramer constitute unfair or deceptive acts or
practices in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C.
§ 45(a).

For these reasons, the Federal Trade Commission this tenth
day of March, 1997, has issued this complaint against
respondents.

By the Commission.

Donald S. Clark
Secretary

SEAL


